Town Board Minutes Town of North Castle 15 Bedford Road Armonk, New York on May 14, 2014

The meeting was called to order at 5:00 p.m. on the duly adopted motion of Councilman D'Angelo and immediately adjourned to executive session. All Town Board members, the Town Attorney and the Town Administrator were present for the executive session which closed at 7:25 pm. The Town Clerk joined the regular meeting which reconvened at 7:35 p.m.

Supervisor Michael J. Schiliro Councilmen: Stephen D'Angelo

Barbara DiGiacinto

Barry Reiter José Berra

Town Clerk Anne Curran
Town Attorney Roland A. Baroni
Town Administrator Joan Goldberg

Presentation of Library Service Awards:

Mary Johnson, a 20 year employee of the library, presented the Teen Volunteer Awards from the North Castle Library to Stephanie Ding, Sara Gelb and Carolyn McGlynn and Maddie Brown. Ms. Johnson said that from the winter of 2012 to early spring of 2014, these students formed what became the Homework Club where they assisted younger students in weekly sessions. The Library Service Award is awarded in recognition and appreciation for commitment and civic mindedness.

The minutes of the public hearing which commenced at 8:20 p.m. follow at the end of these minutes.

Councilman Berra moved, seconded by Councilman D'Angelo, approval of the minutes of the April 23, 2014 meeting.

Vote: Unanimous.

Approval of the proposal from Hydro Environmental regarding environmental assessment of 533-535 Main Street for \$66,435 was tabled, pending the receipt of additional proposals from the Town Engineer.

Authorization for the Town Attorney to commence Article 12A proceedings regarding Long Pond Dam Park District was tabled; the Town Board agreed to schedule another work session with residents. The issues raised by Susan and Zach Shimer and other homeowners that would be part of the Long Pond Dam Park District include:

- Requested that test drilling of dam be done to assess stability.
- Live tree roots hold the soil; the Town should seek professional evaluation based on current research concerning the value of taking down trees and thereby removing root systems.
- According to Article 12 proceedings, only residents can form a park district; the Town cannot create the district.
- Town should appeal to DEC and NYS legislators and work to prevent potential mudslide conditions as have occurred recently in the state of Washington.
- Town should begin a gradual program to clean up dead trees, brush, etc. and then, after discussion with DEC, remove more if necessary.

Supervisor Schiliro recognized and congratulated Planning Director Adam Kaufman on receipt of "Commendation for Outstanding Planning Achievement" by Westchester Municipal Planning Federation, awarded for Mr. Kaufman's work on the development of Armonk Square.

Councilman D'Angelo moved, seconded by Councilman Berra, approval of the formation of a Comprehensive Plan Steering Committee and adoption of the following mission statement:

"The Comprehensive Plan Steering Committee shall be appointed by the Town Board to assist the Town Board in the preparation of a new Comprehensive Plan. The Committee will review

the existing 1996 Comprehensive Plan document as well as review any new draft sections of the updated Plan. The Committee shall contain seven members and may be made up of any combination of the Town Board, Planning Board (one required) as well as citizen and business owners. The Committee shall meet at least monthly to provide direction to the Planning Department and Planning Consultant."

Vote: Unanimous.

The following requests from the Armonk Lions Club for their annual Fol-de-Rol were approved on the duly adopted motion of Councilman Reiter:

- 1. Approval of the use of Wampus Brook Park for their annual Fol-de-Rol, June 5-8, 2014 with set up as of June 1;
- 2. Permission to erect a banner across or along Maple Avenue to promote the Fol-de-Rol;
- 3. Permission to hold a kick-off parade on Saturday, June 7, 2014.

Vote: Unanimous

Councilman D'Angelo moved, seconded by Councilman DiGiacinto, approval of proposal and authorization for the Supervisor to sign the agreement with Prime Building Services, Inc. for repair and restoration of the Gazebo in Wampus Brook Park for a total cost of \$33,900.

Vote: Unanimous

Councilman D'Angelo moved, seconded by Councilman Reiter, the award of bid for roof replacement of Sewer District No. 2 Control Building to NUA Construction Corp. for \$52,000, and further moved authorization for payment from Sewer District No. 2 fund balance.

Vote: Unanimous

Councilman DiGiacinto moved, seconded by Councilman D'Angelo, the award of bid for replacement of the air conditioning system in the Armonk Library to Bruni & Campisi, and authorized the payment of \$15,786 from the Library fund balance.

Vote: Unanimous

Regarding requests from the Friends of the North Castle Public Library, Councilman D'Angelo moved, seconded by Councilman Berra, approval for the Friends of the North Castle Public Library to hold its 53rd annual Armonk Outdoor Art Show at Community Park, September 20-21, 2014, and further moved approval to hold Armonk Outdoor Art Show road races on September 14, 2014.

Vote: Unanimous

Councilman D'Angelo moved, seconded by Councilman DiGiacinto, approval to demolish the recreation building at the North Castle Community Park, with authorization for the work to be performed by Town staff. Administrator Goldberg said if outside contractors are needed, she will advise the Town Board and request appropriate approval.

Vote: Unanimous

Pursuant to a notice from Tax Receiver Colombo regarding small claims assessment review settlements and Consent Judgments, Councilman D'Angelo moved, seconded by Councilman Reiter, approval of refunds as follows:

Small Claim Assessment Review Settlements:

<u>Name</u>	Tax Map No.	Reduction	Refund
Jones	88.04-1-8	\$17,000.00	\$3,066.56
Melnick	102.02-1-53	1,570.00	283.20
Jacobs	102.03-2-35	17,575.00	3,170.27
Katcher	102.04-1-24	21,170.00	3,818.77
Total Assessme	ent Reductions:	\$57,315.00	

Consent Judgments

<u>Name</u>	Parcel I.D.	Reduction	Refund
Herlew Realty	107.04-2-22	\$6,900.00	\$1,171.84
Herlew Realty	107.04-2-22	3,900.00	1,792.39
Scully Realty	122.12-1-3	2,800.00	553.00
Scully Realty	122.12-1-4	4,600.00	908.50
Koutros	122.16-3-31	10,400.00	2,053.99
Total Refunds:			\$6,479.72

Vote: Unanimous

The request from Hillside Church to hold a 5k Charity Run on Sunday, May 25 in Armonk was withdrawn at the applicant's request.

Councilman D'Angelo moved, seconded by Councilman Reiter, approval of alcohol use permit for Arcieri event at Community Park on May 25, 2014.

Vote: Unanimous

Councilman D'Angelo moved, seconded by Councilman Berra, authorization for the Supervisor to sign the agreement with MindMixer for \$7,800 regarding outreach services in connection with review of Town Comprehensive Plan.

Vote: Unanimous

Councilman D'Angelo moved, seconded by Councilman Berra, authorization for the Supervisor to sign the license agreement with Westchester County regarding rental of Fisher Lane commuter parking lot, effective April 1, 2014 through March 31, 2015, for a cost of \$29,577.00.

Vote Unanimous.

Councilman Berra moved, seconded by Councilman D'Angelo, receipt of communication from a resident regarding his appreciation of Police Dept. service and investigation work by Detective DeBenedictis.

Vote: Unanimous

Councilman Reiter moved, seconded by Councilman D'Angelo, approval of terminal leave pay for William Fisher.

Vote: Unanimous

Councilman D'Angelo moved, seconded by Councilman Berra, the appointment of Marianne Bischoff to part-time Intermediate Account Clerk Typist, Finance Dept., up to 17 hours per week, effective May 15, 2014.

Vote: Unanimous

Councilman DiGiacinto moved, seconded by Councilman D'Angelo, approval for Police Officers Sandy Messina, David Zapori, Anthony Sabatella and Kyle McCarrick to attend Speed Enforcement Training in Valhalla, from May 27-30, 2014.

Vote: Unanimous

Councilman Reiter moved, seconded by Councilman D'Angelo, the re-appointment of Susan Geffen to Landmarks Preservation Committee, for a term to expire May 17, 2017.

Vote: Unanimous

Councilman D'Angelo moved, seconded by Councilman Berra, the consensus agenda as follows:

- Receipt of Town Clerk's monthly report for April, 2014

Town Board Minutes May 14, 2014

- Receipt of Notice of Claim regarding Veronica Darden vs. Town of North Castle and referral to Town Attorneys

Vote: Unanimous

The Town Board audited and approved payments totaling \$158,450.51 as indicated on Warrant #9.

After all persons were heard who desired to be heard the Supervisor closed the meeting at 10:50 p.m. in memory of residents Allen Baboian, Salvatore Farago, Mrs. Anna R. McClure, mother of William McClure, retired North Castle Police Sergeant and former Town Councilman and Grandmother of Police Officer William McClure, Dorothy Battistelli, resident and widow of former Highway Superintendent McKinley Battistelli, William Hayes, father of Maureen Trautmann, Highway Department, Howard Cromwell, father of Mike Cromwell, Assistant Building Inspector, and Mrs. Nell Tyler, mother of Shiela Tyler, CSEA Labor Relations Specialist.

Anne Curran, Town Clerk

Dated: May 23, 2014

PUBLIC HEARING

May 14, 2014

At 8:20p.m. Supervisor Schiliro reconvened the Public Hearing which was adjourned on April 23, 2014 for the purpose of considering a local law to amend Chapter 213, Zoning, of the Code of the Town of North Castle, New York, to add provisions regarding Affordable Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing Units.

The proposed local law is available in the Town Clerk's office during regular business hours and on the Town website. ALL PERSONS HAVING AN INTEREST IN THE MATTER ARE INVITED TO ATTEND AND BE HEARD.

By Order of the Town Board Anne Curran, Town Clerk

The following correspondence was received since April 23, 2014:

Comments from Ginny Magrone received May 5, 2014.

Revised proposed Local Law.

Director of Planning Adam Kaufman said there were no substantial changes to the draft local law since April 23, 2014, adding that only minor adjustments were incorporated into the draft, based on some of the comments received. Mr. Kaufman said the discussion item regarding the time period of affordability, 50 years versus in perpetuity, was noted in the draft for further review at tonight's public hearing.

Councilman DiGiacinto cited her conversations with successful builders of affordable housing in Westchester County, many of whom are in support of the 50 year time period and said they would not be interested in building in the Town if the time period was in perpetuity. Ms. DiGiacinto cited information on the County website regarding affordable housing projects, both sale and rental, all of which have a time period of 50 years or less. Ms. DiGiacinto said she did not want the Town to restrict the builders to the same housing for which there may not be a need 50 years from now.

Town Board Minutes May 14, 2014

Supervisor Schiliro said more research was done as there was disagreement among the Board on the time period of affordability. Mr. Schiliro said that he and Councilman Berra had preferred a time period of perpetuity; and Councilmen DiGiacinto, D'Angelo and Reiter had preferred the 50 year period. Mr. Schiliro said he now agrees with the reasoning presented by Councilman DiGiacinto.

In response to a query from Tony Futia, Custis Avenue, Mr. Kaufman explained that the adoption of the law would not supersede the current zoning, nor permit a change in the type of housing currently permitted in the Town's zoning districts.

In response to a query from Councilman Berra, Councilman DiGiacinto said the builders were in support of the 50 year time period for both sale and rental units. Mr. Berra said he understood the concern with rental units, but not with sale units. He suggested a time period of 50 years for rental units and perpetuity for sales units, the same as the Town's Middle Income Units (MIUs), to avoid possible windfalls near the end of 50 years and to have affordable housing available in the future.

Councilman D'Angelo said the County has recommended the 50 year period, other communities have followed this recommendation, and the Town should as well.

Edward Lobermann, Nethermont Avenue, said he agreed with the majority of the Board that the time period should be 50 years due to the uncertainty of economic issues in the future.

Recommendations for additional changes to sections of the draft law were raised by Councilman DiGiacinto and discussed by the Board.

With regard to 213-22.I.1., Required Affordable FFH Unit Component, Ms. DiGiacinto asked the Board to consider removing the language which would require at least one affordable unit in residential developments of eight to nine units. Following discussion among the Board, it was agreed to keep this language.

With regard to Unit 213-22.I.5., Unit Appearance and Integration, Ms. DiGiacinto recommended that in certain circumstances the Planning Board should have the ability to permit off-site units.

Bill Weaver, Frog Rock Road, suggested that single family affordable units be permitted to be built off site, but not multifamily affordable units.

Following discussion by the Board, it was agreed that the Town Board, not the Planning Board, may permit the applicant to construct the AFFH units at another location within the Town.

With regard to 213-22.I.6. Minimum Floor Area, Ms. DiGiacinto expressed concern that requiring single family homes at 80% of market rate sizes would result in large AFFH units which would be costly to develop and expensive for owners to maintain.

Mr. Lobermann expressed concerns about the requirement for the minimum gross floor area per affordable single family AFFH unit not be less than 80% of the average floor area of non-restricted housing units in the development or less than dwelling unit minimum gross floor area, whichever is lesser. Mr. Kaufman explained that the sales price of the single family unit would be regulated, and not determined by sale prices of similar size market rate units.

Frank Madonna, Jr., said that requirement that the minimum gross floor area per affordable multifamily AFFH unit not be less than 80% of the average floor area of non-restricted housing units and no less than minimum gross floor areas would significantly increase the costs for developers and may result in larger units than what is practical.

Supervisor Schiliro said that several other communities are using the 80% requirement as per the County's model ordinance.

The Board agreed to add the change in language regarding single family dwelling size. Regarding minimum gross floor area per affordable multifamily AFFH unit, the Board agreed to keep the language as originally proposed.

Town Board Minutes May 14, 2014

With regard to 213-22.4., Residential Multifamily-Single-Structure, a reduction in the AFFH unit requirement from a minimum of 35% to 20% was recommended to make the proposed project (lumberyard site) within the zoning district more economically feasible. The Board agreed with the reduction.

The Board agreed that units designated as affordable AFFH units will remain affordable for a minimum of 50 years.

No other correspondence or comments were entered for the record.

After all persons were heard who desired to be heard, Councilman DiGiacinto moved, seconded by Councilman D'Angelo, that the Public Hearing be closed at 9:35 p.m.

Vote: Unanimous

Councilman DiGiacinto moved, seconded by Councilman D'Angelo, that based upon review of the Environmental Assessment Form and all other materials, it has been determined that there will be no significant adverse environmental impact and the Town Board hereby adopts a Negative Declaration.

Vote: Unanimous

Dated: May 23, 2014

Councilman Reiter moved, seconded by Councilman D'Angelo, the adoption of Local Law 1 of 2014, with changes as agreed, to amend Chapter 213, Zoning, of the Code of the Town of North Castle, New York, to add provisions regarding Affordable Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing Units. The local law follows at the end of these minutes.

Vote: Unanimous	
	Anne Curran, Town Clerk

Local Law No. 1 for the Year 2014 Adopted May 14, 2014

TOWN OF NORTH CASTLE

A local law to amend the Town Code to add provisions regarding Affordable Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing Units.

<u>Section 1.</u> Add the following definition in proper alphabetical order to Section 213-3 of the Town Code:

AFFORDABLE AFFIRMATIVELY FURTHERING FAIR HOUSING (AFFH) UNIT -

A for-purchase housing unit that is affordable to a household whose income does not exceed 80% of the area median income (AMI) for Westchester as defined annually by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and for which the annual housing cost of a unit including common charges, principal, interest, taxes and insurance (PITI) does not exceed 33% of 80% AMI, adjusted for family size and that is marketed in accordance with the Westchester County Fair & Affordable Housing Affirmative Marketing Plan.

A rental unit that is affordable to a household whose income does not exceed 60% AMI and for which the annual housing cost of the unit, defined as rent plus any tenant paid utilities, does not exceed 30% of 60% AMI adjusted for family size and that is marketed in accordance with the Westchester County Fair & Affordable Housing Affirmative Marketing Plan.

Section 2. Replace Section 213-22.I of the Town Code as follows:

213-22.I. Affordable Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing (AFFH) Units and Middle Income Units

213-22.I.1. Required Affordable FFH Unit Component.

Within all residential developments of 10 or more units created by subdivision or site plan approval, no less than 10% of the total number of units shall be created as affordable AFFH units. In residential developments of eight to nine units, at least one affordable AFFH unit shall be created. No preferences shall be utilized to prioritize the selection of income-eligible tenants or purchasers for affordable AFFH units. Notwithstanding the above, all such affordable AFFH units, whether for purchase or for rent, shall be marketed in accordance with the Westchester County Fair & Affordable Housing Affirmative Marketing Plan. Multifamily developments in the CB-A, R-MF-A and R-MF-SS districts shall require additional AFFH units (pursuant to Sections 213-23.B, 213-22 and 213-22.4, respectively). All middle income units which have received Planning Board site plan approval, but not building permits, as of the effective date of this local law shall be subject to the provisions of this local law and constructed and marketed as AFFH units.

213-22.I.2. Maximum Rent and Sales Price

The maximum monthly rent for an affordable AFFH unit and the maximum gross sales price for a FAH unit shall be established in accordance with U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development guidelines as published in the current edition of the "Westchester County Area Median Income (AMI) Sales & Rent Limits" available from the County of Westchester.

213-22.I.3. Time Period of Affordability

Units designated as affordable AFFH units shall remain affordable for a minimum of 50 years from date of initial certificate of occupancy for rental properties and from date of original sale for ownership units.

213-22.I.4. Property Restriction

A property containing any affordable AFFH units shall be restricted using a mechanism such as a declaration of restrictive covenants in recordable form acceptable to the Town which shall ensure that the affordable AFFH unit shall remain subject to affordable regulations for the minimum 50 year period of affordability. The covenants shall require that the unit be the primary residence of the resident household selected to occupy the unit. Upon approval, such declaration shall be recorded against the property containing the affordable AFFH unit prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for the development.

213-22.I.5. Unit Appearance and Integration

- (i) Within single-family developments, the affordable AFFH units shall also be single-family homes. Each such one-family home shall be located on a lot meeting the minimum lot area for the single-family homes in the development. All such units shall be similar and compatible in appearance, siting and exterior design to the other single-family homes in the development, to the furthest extent possible. Interior finishes and furnishings may be reduced in quality and cost to assist in the lowering of the cost of development of the affordable AFFH units.
- (ii) Within multi-family developments, the affordable AFFH units shall be physically integrated into the design of the development and shall be distributed among various sizes (efficiency, one-, two-, three- and four-bedroom units) in the same proportion as all other units in the development. The affordable AFFH units shall not be distinguishable from other market rate units from the outside or building exteriors. Interior finishes and furnishings may be reduced in quality and cost to assist in the lowering of the cost of development of the affordable AFFH units.
- (iii) Notwithstanding the above, where the Town Board determines that the on-site location of AFFH units is not practical, the Town Board may permit the applicant to construct the AFFH

units at another location within the Town. However, the Town shall place a strong preference for AFFH units provided on site.

213-22.I.6. Minimum Floor Area

(i) The minimum gross floor area per affordable multifamily AFFH unit shall not be less than 80% of the average floor area of non-restricted housing units in the development and no less than the following:

Multifamily Dwelling Unit Minimum Gross Floor Area (square feet)

Efficiency 450
1 bedroom 675
2 bedroom 750 (including at least 1.5 baths)
3 bedroom 4 bedroom
& larger 1,200 (including at least 2.5 baths)

(ii) The minimum gross floor area per affordable single family AFFH unit shall not be less than 80% of the average floor area of non-restricted housing units in the development or less than the following, whichever is lesser. However, in no case shall the AFFH unit be less than the following:

Single Family Dwelling Unit Minimum Gross Floor Area (square feet)

Efficiency 800
1 bedroom 800
2 bedroom 1,125 (including at least 1.5 baths)
3 bedroom 4,500 (including at least 2 baths)
4 larger 1,800 (including at least 2.5 baths)

For the purposes of this section, paved terraces or balconies may be counted toward the minimum gross floor area requirement in an amount not to exceed 1/3 of the square footage of such terraces or balconies. As an alternative, the minimum gross floor area per affordable AFFH unit shall be in accordance with the standards set forth by the New York State Division of Housing and Community Renewal & the New York State Housing Trust Fund Corporation in Section 4.03.03 of the most recent edition of its joint Design Manual.

213-22.I.7. Occupancy standards

For the sale or rental of affordable AFFH units, the following occupancy schedule shall apply:

Number of Bedrooms Number of Persons

Minimum:1, Maximum:1
Minimum:1, Maximum:3
Minimum:2, Maximum:5
Minimum:3, Maximum:7
Minimum:4, Maximum:9

213-22.I.8. Affirmative Marketing

The affordable AFFH units created under the provisions of this section shall be sold or rented, and resold and re-rented during the required period of affordability, to only qualifying income-eligible households. Such income-eligible households shall be solicited in accordance with the requirements, policies and protocols established in the Westchester County Fair & Affordable Housing Affirmative Marketing Plan so as to ensure outreach to racially and ethnically diverse households.

213-22.I.9. Resale Requirements

In the case of owner-occupied affordable AFFH units, the title to said property shall be restricted so that in the event of any resale by the home buyer or any successor, the resale price shall not exceed the then-maximum selling price for said unit, as determined in this Section of the Town Code, or the sum of:

- (i) The net purchase price (i.e. gross sales prices minus subsidies) paid for the unit by the selling owner, increased by the percentage increase, if any, in the Consumer Price Index for Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers in the New York- Northern New Jersey Area, as published by the United States Bureau of Labor Statistics (the "Index") on any date between (a) the month that was two months earlier than the date on which the seller acquired the unit and (b) the month that is two months earlier than the month in which the seller contracts to sell the unit. If the Bureau stops publishing this index, and fails to designate a successor index, the Westchester County Department of Planning shall designate a substitute index; and
- (ii) The cost of major capital improvements made by the seller of the unit while said seller of the unit owned the unit as evidenced by paid receipts depreciated on a straight line basis over a 15 year period from the date of completion and such approval shall be requested for said major capital improvement no later than the time the seller of the unit desires to include it in the resale price.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in no event shall the resale price exceed an amount affordable to a household at 80% of AMI at the time of the re-sale.

213-22.I.10. Lease Renewal Requirements

Applicants for rental affordable AFFH units shall, if eligible and if selected for occupancy, sign leases for a term of no more than two years. As long as a resident remains eligible and has complied with the terms of the lease, said resident shall be offered renewal leases for a term of no more than two years each. Renewal of a lease shall be subject to the conditions of federal, state or county provisions that may be imposed by the terms of the original development funding agreements for the development or to the provisions of other applicable local law. If no such provisions are applicable and if a resident's annual gross income should subsequently exceed the maximum then allowable, as defined in this chapter, then the renter may complete his or her current lease term, and at the end of that lease term, if a rental unit that is not an AFFH unit is available, the renter may be offered a lease for that rental unit that is not an AFFH unit, or if a rental unit that is not an AFFH unit is not available, he or she may be allowed to sign one additional one-year lease for the AFFH unit currently occupied but shall not be offered a renewal of the lease beyond the expiration of that additional one-year lease term.

213-22.I.11. Administrative and Monitoring Agency

The County of Westchester or its designated agency or delegate shall administer the requirements of this Chapter, and among other things, be responsible for monitoring the AFFH units during the units' periods of affordability and for monitoring compliance with the income and eligibility requirements and affirmative marketing responsibilities applicable to the AFFH units.

213-22.I.12. Middle income dwelling units. All existing Middle Income Units shall be subject to the following provisions:

- (1) Distribution. Such units shall be available for resale or continuing rental only to middle-income families as defined in § 213-3 of this chapter.
- (2) Occupancy standards. In renting or selling, the following schedule shall apply to middle-income dwelling units:

Number of Bedrooms	Number of Persons	
	Minimum	Maximum
Efficiency	1	1
1	1	2

2	1	4
2 3	2	6
4	4	8

- (3) Maximum rent and sales price.
 - (a) Rental. The maximum monthly rent for a middle-income dwelling unit shall not exceed 1.8%, excluding utilities (gas, oil and electricity), or 2.0%, if utilities are included, of the maximum aggregate family income for a middle-income family as defined in § 213-3 of this chapter for the maximum size of family eligible for such unit as set forth in Subsection I.11(2) above.
 - (b) Sales. The maximum gross sales price for a middle-income unit shall not exceed two times the maximum aggregate family income for a middle-income family as defined in § 213-3 of this chapter for the maximum size of family eligible for such unit as set forth in Subsection I.11(2) above. In addition, a one-percent inflation rate per year of ownership (not compounded) may be added to original purchase price contingent upon the owner(s) demonstrating to the Housing Board that the MIU has been maintained in excellent condition. Application of the annual percentage increase shall be subject to the discretion of the Housing Board based solely upon the condition of the MIU.
 - (c) Mortgages. The applicant shall, if possible, obtain from the lending institution chosen for the development a commitment to provide, for all middle-income units, mortgages for up to 95% of unit cost, or for the maximum amount for which the mortgagor qualifies, whichever is less.
- (4) Eligibility priority list; residency requirement.
 - (a) Eligibility priority list.
 - [1] For the purpose of these regulations, the minimum residency requirement is as follows:
 - [a] North Castle: two years.
 - [b] Westchester County: two years.
 - [2] Whenever the applicant qualifies in more than one category, the highest point value within each section applies. The point values of each section are then added together to arrive at the total point value. The "applicant" shall be defined as any individual member of a family whose income is included in the eligibility requirements of § 213-22 of this article.
 - [3] The priority list shall be as follows:

Section	Category	Point Value
1	North Castle Town resident	5
	North Castle head of family, minimum residency of 10 consecutive years	10
	Nonresident relative, over 62 years of age, of a qualified Town resident	3
	All others	1
2	North Castle municipal employee, full-time, minimum of 24 months	5
	North Castle municipal employee, full-time, minimum of 24 months, together with spouse who is also a North Castle municipal employee, full-time, minimum of 24 months	7 1/2
	Other persons employed in North Castle	2

	Other persons employed in Westchester County	1
3	A Town of North Castle school district employee, full-time, minimum of 24 months	5
	A Town of North Castle school district employee, full-time, minimum of 24 months, together with spouse who is also a North Castle school district employee, full-time, minimum of 24 months	7 1/2
4	North Castle Volunteer Fire Department member, minimum of 24 months consecutive service	5
	North Castle Volunteer Fire Department member, minimum of 24 months consecutive service, together with spouse who is also a North Castle Volunteer Fire Department member, minimum of 24 months consecutive service	7 1/2
	North Castle Volunteer Fire Department member, minimum of 60 months consecutive service	8
5	Veterans of United States Armed Services	3
6	Physically handicapped resident of North Castle, certified by Social Security Disability Insurance (SSDI).	4
	Physically handicapped relative of North Castle resident, certified by certified by Social Security Disability Insurance (SSDI).	3
7	Former resident of North Castle, minimum of 10 years	3
	Former North Castle MIU owner	2
8	Growing family, already in a North Castle MIU	5
9	Resident of Westchester County	2

(b) Owner to be resident. Each MIU shall be the only residence of its owner. All eligible applicants who are owners of any other residence shall satisfy the Housing Board of the purchase of an MIU. For the purposes of these regulations, real estate used by the applicant to derive income shall be excluded. Such income is to be calculated in determining the applicant's gross annual family income.

(5) Continued eligibility.

(a) Rental. Applicants for middle-income rental units referred to in this section shall, if eligible and if selected for occupancy by the owner or manager of the development, sign leases for a term of no more than two years. As long as a resident remains eligible and has complied with the terms of the lease, said resident shall be offered a two-year renewal of the lease. If a resident's annual gross income should subsequently exceed by more than 20% the maximum then allowable, as defined in § 213-3 of this chapter,

and if there is at that time an otherwise eligible applicant within one of the categories in Subsection I.11(4) above, said resident may complete his current lease term and shall be offered a non-middle-income rental unit available in the development at the termination of such lease term, if available. If no such dwelling unit shall be available at said time, the resident may be allowed to sign one additional one-year lease for the middle-income dwelling unit occupied but shall not be offered a renewal of the lease beyond the expiration of said term. An MIU owner shall provide the Housing Board with a letter stating the owner's intent to make an MIU unit available for re-rental. Upon receipt of the letter, the Housing Board shall make an appointment to inspect the unit prior to the unit being advertised for rent. The purpose of the inspection shall be to evaluate and document the condition of the unit. In the event an MIU is not habitable or not in resale condition, the Housing Board reserves the right to require the MIU owner to make any necessary repairs.

(b) Sales.

- [1] In the case of owner-occupied middle-income dwelling units, the title to said property shall be restricted, so that in the event of any resale by the home buyer or any successor, the resale price shall not exceed the then-maximum sales price for said unit, as determined in accordance with Subsection I.11.(3)(b) of this section, or the sum of the following, whichever is less:
 - [a] The amount of any principal payment made by the home buyer.
 - [b] The remaining principal on any mortgage(s).
 - [c] The value of any eligible fixed improvements, as permitted below, and not included with Subsection I.11(5)(b)[1][a] or [b] above. Eligible fixed improvements for homeowners of middle-income units:
 - [i] In order to qualify as an eligible fixed improvement, each expenditure shall be approved conditionally in advance by the Town Housing Board.
 - [ii] The homeowner shall submit in advance to the Town Housing Board detailed plans for each proposed eligible fixed improvement and an itemization of the expected costs.
 - [iii] The Town Housing Board shall review the proposal and conditionally approve eligible fixed improvements within 30 days or shall indicate the reasons denying the proposal.
 - [iv] If an item wears out prior to the determined life expectancy as indicated in § 213-22.I.11(5)(b)[1][c][xii], approval from the Town Housing Board shall be obtained prior to the replacement of the item. Within 30 days after review of the fixed improvement request, the Town Housing Board shall notify the homeowner in writing whether or not the proposed expenditure is approved conditionally as an eligible fixed improvement.
 - [v] Within 60 days after a proposed eligible fixed improvement has been completed, the homeowner shall apply for final approval by the Town Housing Board for the eligible fixed improvement. Complete documentation demonstrating all costs of the improvement shall be submitted to the satisfaction of the Housing Board and include the following information:
 - [A] Written request for fixed improvement credit.

- [B] Itemized original receipt or original bill of sale, complete with the seller's name, address, phone number and canceled check.
- [vi] Within 60 days after the review of the fixed improvement request, the Town Housing Board shall notify the homeowner in writing about the eligibility of the fixed improvement credit.
- [vii] If bartered goods or services were included in the cost, the homeowner shall submit an independent valuation of the value of those goods or services to the satisfaction of the Town Housing Board. If labor of the homeowner, the homeowner's spouse, children or parents for construction work is included within the cost, a detailed account of the work and time spent on the work shall be submitted along with two current estimates of the value of that work by at least two construction contractors licensed by Westchester County to the satisfaction of the Town Housing Board.
- [viii] The Town shall have the right to inspect the property at times that are mutually convenient to the Town and the homeowner to confirm that the eligible fixed improvements have been completed in a workmanlike manner and the reasonable value of the improvement. If the Town, in its reasonable discretion, is unsatisfied with the documentation provided by the homeowner, it may base its determination of the value of the improvements upon an estimation provided by an objective third-party professional.
- [ix] At the conclusion of this process, the Town Housing Board shall send a written statement of determination regarding the fixed improvement status to the homeowner.
- [x] Eligible fixed improvements shall not exceed a total of 0.5% of the original purchase price for the first complete calendar year during which the homeowner possessed the property if the homeowner purchased the property after September 10, 2008. Thereafter, the yearly limit shall be 1.0% of the original purchase price for each subsequent year of homeownership. The owner may include within the limit for eligible capital improvements an amount up to the total produced by adding together all of the yearly limits for each completed calendar year during which the owner has owned the property.

Fixed improvements shall not exceed a total of 0.5% of the original purchase price for the first complete calendar year after September 10, 2008. Thereafter, the yearly limit shall be 1.0% of the original purchase price for each subsequent year of homeownership. The owner may include within the limit for eligible capital improvements an amount up to the total produced by adding together all of the yearly limits for each completed calendar year subsequent to September 10, 2008.

- [xi] Improvements eligible for fixed improvement credit are those items which:
 - [A] Add habitable rooms.

- [B] Significantly reduce energy consumption.
- [C] Replace old and deteriorated building components, such as the roof or furnace.
- [D] Renovate a kitchen or bathroom to address health and safety issues.
- [xii] The following improvements are normally considered to be of a fixed nature and may be added to the resale price (when they were not included in the original purchase price). The standard life expectancy is indicated in parenthesis:
 - [A] Homeowners' association costs. Homeowners' association (HOA) dues are not an eligible fixed improvement; however, eligible repairs improvements made by the HOA to the housing unit may be eligible for fixed improvement credit. If the homeowners' association pays for an improvement, such as a worn-out roof over the middle-income unit, the total cost of the project may be prorated to determine the cost attributable to the roof over the middle-income unit. A receipt, with a written request, shall be submitted, as explained in § 213-22I.11(5)(b)[1][c][v], for review and approval.
 - [B] Room additions, completion of unfinished areas into living areas.
 - [C] Insulation.
 - [D] Upgraded replacement of single-pane and failed thermopane windows (15 years).
 - [E] Modifications needed to accommodate a person with a disability.
 - [F] Central air conditioning (20 years).
 - [G] Ceiling fan.
 - [H] Kitchen appliances (10 years).
 - [I] Permanent storage sheds.
 - [J] Replacement of worn bathroom vanities, built-in cabinets (20 years).
 - [K] Replacement of worn kitchen cabinets, built-in permanent cabinets (20 years).
 - [L] Repair of existing patios, porches and decks (20 years).
 - [M] Replacement of worn floor coverings (10 years).
 - [N] Siding replacement (20 years).
 - [O] Roof replacement (20 years).
 - [P] Furnace replacement (20 years).

- [Q] Water heaters (10 years).
- [xiii] Improvements considered to be nonfixed or cosmetic are not eligible. Additionally, luxury and high-end items chosen over standard grades will not be eligible for fixed improvement credits as determined by the Town Housing Board.
- [d] Reasonable and necessary expenses incidental to the resale.
- [2] The deed of ownership of any MIU shall contain a covenant and restriction that it is subject to the middle-income housing provisions of Chapter 213, Zoning, of the Code of the Town of North Castle, as amended from time to time, and that such provisions include restrictions on occupancy and resale. The covenants and restrictions imposed on an MIU shall be in form and content as to enable the same to be recorded with the County Clerk, Division of Land Records, Westchester County, and shall be satisfactory to the attorneys to the Town of North Castle.
- [3] An MIU owner shall provide the Housing Board with a letter stating the owner's intent to make an MIU unit available for resale. Upon receipt of the letter, the Housing Board shall make an appointment to inspect the unit prior to the unit being advertised for sale. The purpose of the inspection shall be to evaluate and document the condition of the unit. In the event an MIU is not habitable or not in resale condition, the Housing Board reserves the right to reduce the unit's selling price.

(7) Administration.

- (a) The Town Board shall establish a Town Housing Board which shall be responsible for the administration of the middle-income housing requirements of this section as well as for the promulgation of such rules and regulations as may be necessary to implement such requirements.
- (b) At the time of the issuance of a building permit, the Building Inspector shall send a copy of such certificate to the Town Housing Board, who shall then inform the applicant of the maximum rental or sales charge which may be established for the middle-income dwelling units in such development and the maximum annual gross family income for eligibility for occupancy of said units.
- (c) The Town Housing Board shall certify as eligible all applicants for rental or sale middle-income dwelling units and shall annually reexamine or cause to be reexamined each occupancy family's income.
- (d) On or before March 30 of each year thereafter, the Town Housing Board shall notify the owner or manager of each multifamily development containing middle-income units as to the rent, sales and income eligibility requirements for such units based upon figures derived from the Town budget for that year.
- (e) The owner or manager of such multifamily development shall certify to the Town Housing Board on or before May 31 of each year that the current rental or sales prices of all middle-income dwelling units comply with the terms of this chapter.
- (8) Appeals. The Town Board shall review and decide appeals from any determination of the Housing Board. Applicants requesting an appeal must do so, in writing, within 14 days of receipt of the determination of the Housing Board from which the appeal is filed. The Town Board shall hear the appeal within 30 days of the filing of the notice of appeal with the Town and shall render its decision within 15 days thereafter.

Section 3. Replace Section 143-5.C of the Town Code with the following text:

C. In all cases where a middle income unit or AFFH unit is developed, the recreation fee shall be \$1,000 per dwelling unit for a multifamily development (or other form of residential development) requiring only a site plan or special permit approval.

Section 4. Replace Section A216-35.B of the Town Code with the following text:

B. In all cases where a middle income unit or AFFH unit is developed, the recreation fee shall be \$1,000 per new building lot.

Section 5. Replace Section 213-22.A of the Town Code with the following text:

§ 213-22. Additional Multifamily Residence District regulations.

Multifamily (R-MF). In an R-MF District, all such uses shall be subject to site plan approval in accordance with Article VIII of this chapter.

A. Intent. This district is established in order to increase the supply of dwelling units suitable for smaller families or individuals, to preserve significant open space, to secure superior land planning and to increase the supply of moderate-cost housing. In addition, this district shall promote the creation of AFFH dwelling units in proximity to the downtown area in order to mitigate existing parking conditions and to promote business activity within the hamlet area. Site location shall conform to the standards set forth in the Town Development Plan.

Section 6. Replace Section 213-22.B(1) of the Town Code with the following text:

- B. Allowable density.
 - (1) Maximum density. The maximum gross density shall not exceed one density unit, as defined in § 213-3 of this chapter, per 25,000 square feet of net lot area, as defined in Subsection B(2).

Section 7. Replace Section 213-22.1.B of the Town Code with the following text:

- B. Applicability. All standards and requirements as set forth in § 213-22 above for the Multifamily (R-MF) District shall be likewise applicable to the R-MF-A District, except as follows:
 - (1) Allowable density. The average gross density shall not exceed one density unit, as defined in § 213-3 of this chapter, per 14,000 square feet of land area as defined in Subsection B(2) of § 213-22 above.
 - (2) Improved recreation area. Instead of the requirements of § 213-22F(4), all such uses shall comply with the requirements of Chapter 143 of the Town Code entitled "Parkland Reservations."
 - (3) Detached units. A property owner will be permitted to incorporate detached units as defined in § 213-3 at a percentage not to exceed 60% of the total proposed dwelling units, including attached, semidetached, detached and multifamily dwelling units, exclusive of AFFH units, provided that the previously approved number of AFFH units is increased by at least 100%.

Section 8. Replace Section 213-22.3.B(4) and (5) of the Town Code with the following text:

- (4) The minimum floor area requirement shall be 800 square feet per one-bedroom unit and 1,000 square feet per two-bedroom unit, except that for AFFH unit minimum floor areas shall be as set forth in § 213-22.I.6 of the Town Code.
- (5) Affordable Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing (AFFH) Units shall be provided pursuant to § 213-22.I of the Town Code.

Section 9. Replace Section 213-22.4.A of the Town Code with the following text:

§ 213-22.4. Residential Multifamily-Single Structure (R-MF-SS).

- A. Intent. This district is established in order to increase the supply of dwelling units suitable for smaller families or individuals, to secure superior land planning and to increase the supply of moderate-cost housing. In addition, this district shall promote the creation of AFFH dwelling units in proximity to the downtown area in order to mitigate existing parking conditions and to promote business activity within the hamlet area.
- C. AFFH Units. A minimum of 20% of all units within the single structure shall be AFFH units provided pursuant to § 213-22.I of the Town Code.

Section 10. Replace Section 213-23.B(2)(c) of the Town Code with the following text:

(c) At least 20%, but not more than 40%, of the total floor area within the CB-A District shall consist of multifamily dwellings located on the second story. At least 20% of dwellings within the CB-A District shall be designated and set aside as AFFH pursuant to § 213-22.I of the Town Code.

Section 11. Replace Note #3 in Section 213-20 of the CB-A Zoning District Permitted Principal Uses with the following text:

3. At least 20%, but not more than 40%, of the total floor area within the CB-A District shall consist of multifamily dwellings located on the second story. At least 20% of dwellings within the CB-A District shall be designated and set aside as AFFH pursuant to § 213-22.I of the Town Code.

Section 12. Modify the Middle Income Dwelling Units text in Section 213-45.A of the Town Code as follows:

Middle-income dwelling units and AFFH units

1 for each dwelling unit, plus 1/2 for each bedroom

Section 13. Replace Note r in Section 213-19 of the Town Code with the following text:

r. Reserved